



DATE: April 18, 2018
TO: Council Finance & Budget Committee
FROM: Director of Finance
SUBJECT CalPERS Update

RECOMMENDATION

That the Committee reviews and comments on the CalPERS Update.

SUMMARY

This report provides a review of the June 30, 2016 CalPERS Actuarial Valuation Report, and includes projected future fiscal impacts associated with CalPERS' change in assumed discount rate from 7.5 percent to 7.0 percent for the plan.

BACKGROUND

The City of Hayward offers its employees and retirees a defined pension benefit plan which is managed and administered by the California Pensions Retirement System (CalPERS) a State of California Pension program. For each of the City's plans (Police, Fire & Miscellaneous) CalPERS provides annual actuarial valuation report detailing the latest status of the City of Hayward Pension plans for employees and retirees. These actuarial reports are used to calculate the annual required contribution the pension obligations. In addition, updates on the rate of return, funding status, and changes based on various impacts are detailed in the report.

The information in this report is based on the details included in the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation for each of the City's three plans.

DISCUSSION

CalPERS provides participating agencies an annual actuarial valuation, an analysis that provides determined pension liability and annual required contribution for the pension plans it manages – each valuation includes an update on the plan's funding status, results of assumptions such as rate of return, the new fiscal year Annual Required Contribution (ARC) and projected future ARC as a percentage of payroll.

On December 21, 2016, the CalPERS Board of Administration lowered the discount rate (or rate of return) from 7.5 percent to 7.0 percent using a three-year phase-in beginning in FY 2019.

The ARC for FY 2019 is \$13.2 million for the Miscellaneous Plan, \$9.3 million for Fire, and \$14.1 million for Police. These payments reflect the combined cost of both the “Normal Cost” and the “Unfunded Accrued Liability”. Future ARCs are estimated to grow from 28.6 percent to 38.1 percent of payroll by FY 2023 for the Miscellaneous Plan, from 48.9 percent to 66.1 percent for Fire Safety, and from 54.4 percent to 70.9 percent for the Police Safety. This is based on a 7.375 percent rate of return for FY 2019, 7.25 percent for FY 2020, and 7.00 percent for future years starting in FY 2021. Tables 1 through 3 demonstrate the fiscal impact that the change in discount rate has on the City’s projected future ARCs.

Table 1: Miscellaneous Plan

Miscellaneous Plan - June 30, 2015 CalPERS Actuarial Valuation

Discount Rate - 7.50%						
	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21	2021-22	2022-23
Normal Cost Rate in (%)	8.416%	8.416%	8.416%	8.416%	8.416%	8.416%
Normal Cost Rate in Dollars (\$)	\$ 3,511,174	\$ 3,617,000	\$ 3,725,000	\$ 3,837,000	\$ 3,952,000	\$ 4,070,000
Unfunded Actuarial Liability (\$)	\$ 7,925,968	\$ 9,168,962	\$ 10,479,397	\$ 11,344,020	\$ 12,268,382	\$ 13,008,557
Total Annual PERS expense (\$)	\$ 11,437,142	\$ 12,785,962	\$ 14,204,397	\$ 15,181,020	\$ 16,220,382	\$ 17,078,557
Projected Payroll (\$)	\$ 41,720,220	\$ 42,972,000	\$ 44,261,000	\$ 45,589,000	\$ 46,957,000	\$ 48,366,000
PERS expense as a Percentage of Projected Payroll (%)	27.4%	29.8%	32.1%	33.3%	34.5%	35.3%

Miscellaneous Plan - June 30, 2016 CalPERS Actuarial Valuation

Discount Rate - 7.00% (phased in)						
	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21	2021-22	2022-23
Normal Cost Rate in (%)	8.416%	7.375%	7.25%	7.00%	7.00%	7.00%
Normal Cost Rate in Dollars (\$)	\$ 3,511,174	\$ 4,070,270	\$ 4,426,056	\$ 5,000,040	\$ 5,150,082	\$ 5,304,612
Unfunded Actuarial Liability Cost (\$)	\$ 7,925,968	\$ 9,164,900	\$ 10,591,000	\$ 11,722,000	\$ 13,187,000	\$ 14,514,000
Total Annual PERS expense (\$)	\$ 11,437,142	\$ 13,235,170	\$ 15,017,056	\$ 16,722,040	\$ 18,337,082	\$ 19,818,612
Projected Payroll (\$)	\$ 41,720,220	\$ 46,205,815	\$ 47,592,000	\$ 49,020,000	\$ 50,491,000	\$ 52,006,000
Percentage Increase in Cost (%)	0.0%	3.5%	5.7%	10.2%	13.0%	16.0%
PERS expense as a Percentage of Projected Payroll (%)	27.4%	28.6%	31.6%	34.1%	36.3%	38.1%
Difference in expense due to change in discount rate (\$)	\$ -	\$ 449,208	\$ 812,659	\$ 1,541,020	\$ 2,116,700	\$ 2,740,055
Difference in expense as a Percentage of Projected Payroll (%)	0.0%	-1.1%	-0.5%	0.8%	1.8%	2.8%

Table 1 compares the projection of CalPERS cost for the Miscellaneous Plan based on the change in discount rate between the June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2016 Actuarial Valuation reports. By FY 2023, the change in discount rate projects an increase to the City’s ARC for the Miscellaneous Plan by \$2.7 million, a 16 percent increase over the June 30, 2015 Actuarial Valuation projection.

Table 2: Fire Plan**Safety Fire Plan - June 30, 2015 CalPERS Actuarial Valuation**

Discount Rate - 7.50%						
	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21	2021-22	2022-23
Normal Cost Rate in (%)	16.872%	16.872%	16.872%	16.872%	16.872%	16.872%
Normal Cost Rate in Dollars (\$)	\$ 2,968,000	\$ 3,057,000	\$ 3,148,000	\$ 3,243,000	\$ 3,340,000	\$ 3,441,000
Unfunded Actuarial Liability (\$)	\$ 4,985,000	\$ 5,946,982	\$ 6,961,928	\$ 7,624,238	\$ 8,335,066	\$ 8,816,933
Total Annual PERS expense (\$)	\$ 7,953,000	\$ 9,003,982	\$ 10,109,928	\$ 10,867,238	\$ 11,675,066	\$ 12,257,933
Projected Payroll (\$)	\$ 17,589,376	\$ 18,117,000	\$ 18,661,000	\$ 19,221,000	\$ 19,798,000	\$ 20,392,000
PERS expense as a Percentage of Projected Payroll (%)	45.2%	49.7%	54.2%	56.5%	59.0%	60.1%

Safety Fire Plan - June 30, 2016 CalPERS Actuarial Valuation

Discount Rate - 7.00% (phased in)						
	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21	2021-22	2022-23
Normal Cost Rate in (%)	16.872%	17.721%	18.600%	20.400%	20.400%	20.400%
Normal Cost Rate in Dollars (\$)	\$ 2,968,000	\$ 3,379,817	\$ 3,653,970	\$ 4,127,736	\$ 4,251,564	\$ 4,379,064
Unfunded Actuarial Liability Cost (\$)	\$ 4,985,000	\$ 5,939,243	\$ 7,024,000	\$ 7,854,000	\$ 8,929,000	\$ 9,811,000
Total Annual PERS expense (\$)	\$ 7,953,000	\$ 9,319,060	\$ 10,677,970	\$ 11,981,736	\$ 13,180,564	\$ 14,190,064
Projected Payroll (\$)	\$ 17,589,376	\$ 19,072,381	\$ 19,645,000	\$ 20,234,000	\$ 20,841,000	\$ 21,466,000
Percentage Increase in Cost (%)	0.0%	3.5%	5.6%	10.3%	12.9%	15.8%
PERS expense as a Percentage of Projected Payroll (%)	45.2%	48.9%	54.4%	59.2%	63.2%	66.1%
Difference in expense due to change in discount rate (\$)	\$ -	\$ 315,078	\$ 568,042	\$ 1,114,498	\$ 1,505,498	\$ 1,932,131
Difference in expense as a Percentage of Projected Payroll (%)	0.0%	-0.8%	0.2%	2.7%	4.3%	6.0%

Table 2 compares the projection of CalPERS cost for the Fire Plan based on the change in discount rate between the June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2016 Actuarial Valuation reports. By FY 2023, the change in discount rate projects an increase to the City's ARC for the Safety Fire Plan by \$1.9 million, a 15.8 percent increase over the June 30, 2015 Actuarial Valuation projection.

Table 3: Police Plan**Safety Police Plan - June 30, 2015 CalPERS Actuarial Valuation**

Discount Rate - 7.50%						
	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21	2021-22	2022-23
Normal Cost Rate in (%)	21.460%	21.460%	21.460%	21.460%	21.460%	21.460%
Normal Cost Rate in Dollars (\$)	\$ 5,210,000	\$ 5,366,000	\$ 5,527,000	\$ 5,693,000	\$ 5,864,000	\$ 6,040,000
Unfunded Actuarial Liability (\$)	\$ 6,994,000	\$ 8,422,104	\$ 9,929,771	\$ 10,817,198	\$ 11,707,863	\$ 12,349,567
Total Annual PERS expense (\$)	\$ 12,204,000	\$ 13,788,104	\$ 15,456,771	\$ 16,510,198	\$ 17,571,863	\$ 18,389,567
Projected Payroll (\$)	\$ 24,277,717	\$ 25,006,000	\$ 25,756,000	\$ 26,529,000	\$ 27,325,000	\$ 28,145,000
PERS expense as a Percentage of Projected Payroll (%)	50.3%	55.1%	60.0%	62.2%	64.3%	65.3%

Safety Police Plan - June 30, 2016 CalPERS Actuarial Valuation

Discount Rate - 7.00% (phased in)						
	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21	2021-22	2022-23
Normal Cost Rate in (%)	21.460%	22.112%	23.000%	24.900%	24.900%	24.900%
Normal Cost Rate in Dollars (\$)	\$ 5,210,000	\$ 5,711,100	\$ 6,118,667	\$ 6,822,846	\$ 7,027,531	\$ 7,238,357
Unfunded Actuarial Liability Cost (\$)	\$ 6,994,000	\$ 8,346,018	\$ 9,880,000	\$ 10,928,000	\$ 12,255,000	\$ 13,376,000
Total Annual PERS expense (\$)	\$ 12,204,000	\$ 14,057,118	\$ 15,998,667	\$ 17,750,846	\$ 19,282,531	\$ 20,614,357
Projected Payroll (\$)	\$ 24,277,717	\$ 25,828,057	\$ 26,602,899	\$ 27,400,986	\$ 28,223,016	\$ 29,069,707
Percentage Increase in Cost (%)	0.0%	2.0%	3.5%	7.5%	9.7%	12.1%
PERS expense as a Percentage of Projected Payroll (%)	50.3%	54.4%	60.1%	64.8%	68.3%	70.9%
Difference in expense due to change in discount rate (\$)	\$ -	\$ 269,014	\$ 541,896	\$ 1,240,648	\$ 1,710,668	\$ 2,224,790
Difference in expense as a Percentage of Projected Payroll (%)	0.0%	-0.7%	0.1%	2.5%	4.0%	5.6%

Table 3 compares the projection of CalPERS cost for the Police Plan based on the change in discount rate between the June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2016 Actuarial Valuation reports. By FY 2023, the change in discount rate projects an increase to the City's ARC for the Safety Police

Plan by \$2.2 million, a 12.1 percent increase over the June 30, 2015 Actuarial Valuation projection.

CalPERS Projected Unfunded Accrued Pension Liability:

The City's current funded status is 61.2 percent for Safety Fire, and 59.2 percent for Safety Police, and 64.2 percent for Miscellaneous. Table 4 below outlines the City's Funded Status, which includes the phase-in of discount rate reflected in the June 30, 2016 Actuarial Valuation Report. The unfunded pension liability increased from \$333.7 million as of June 30, 2015 to \$400.2 million as of June 30, 2016, an increase of \$66.5 million or 19.9%.

Table 4: CalPERS Projected Unfunded Accrued Liability for the City of Hayward

CalPERS Plans	As of June 30, 2014	As of June 30, 2015	As of June 30, 2016
Miscellaneous Plan	\$ 106,691,805	\$ 122,089,462	\$ 149,950,414
Funded Ratio	72.40%	69.40%	64.20%
Safety Fire Plan	\$ 70,828,906	\$ 87,384,068	\$ 105,567,312
Funded Ratio	71.10%	66.30%	61.20%
Safety Police Plan	\$ 104,561,888	\$ 124,183,655	\$ 144,677,587
Funded Ratio	67.40%	63.30%	59.20%
TOTAL UNFUNDED PENSION LIABILITY	\$ 282,082,599	\$ 333,657,185	\$ 400,195,313

As shown in the Table 4, the funded ratio for all three plans has declined significantly over the last three valuation reports, in spite of increased contributions by the City and its employees over the same period with the City's unfunded pension liability continuing to grow. The largest factor in this change is the multiple changes in assumptions which the CalPERS Board has adopted for the plans. These changes were detailed in the staff report provided to the Committee at the March 21, 2018 meeting.

ECONOMIC IMPACT

This is an informational item and has no direct economic impact.

FISCAL IMPACT

While the rising costs of funding the costs associated with the City's pension plans is a challenging piece of the operating budget, the conveyance of the information included in this report has no fiscal impact.

PUBLIC CONTACT

At a regular public meeting of the Committee on March 21, 2018, information on funding status of the City's CalPERS managed pension plans was provided as part of the Annual City Benefit Liabilities and Funding Review.

Additionally, on April 3, 2018 at a regular public meeting of the City Council, the Council received a report on the Annual City Benefit Liabilities and Funding Review.

Prepared by: Nicole Gonzales, Budget Officer
Dustin Claussen, Director of Finance

Recommended by: Dustin Claussen, Director of Finance

Approved by:

A handwritten signature in black ink, appearing to read 'K. McAdoo', is written over a horizontal line.

Kelly McAdoo, City Manager